THE CIVIL SERVICE MOTORING ASSOCIATION LTD

TERMS OF REFERENCE OF: THE NOMINATIONS COMMITTEE

Definitions

1. In this document:

"Articles"	means the Articles of Association of the Association
"the Association"	means the Civil Service Motoring Association Ltd
"the Association Chair"	means the person appointed as Chair of the Association
"the Board"	means the Board of Directors of the Association
"the Code"	means the UK Corporate Governance Code
"Director"	means a person who is a Director of the Association
"Governors"	means individuals who are Governors of the Association

Responsibilities and other matters

- 2. The Committee has the responsibilities set out in the Appendix to these Terms of Reference. The Committee has oversight of the Group as a whole in relation to **Nominations** and (unless required otherwise by law or regulation) carries out the duties in the Appendix for the Association and its subsidiaries and the Group as a whole, as appropriate.
- 3. The Committee shall make whatever recommendations to the Board it deems appropriate on any area within its remit where action or improvement is needed, and adequate time shall be made available for Board discussion, when necessary.
- 4. When making a decision or recommendation the Committee shall have due regard to the ethos, values and traditions of the Association.
- 5. The Committee shall:
 - (a) Have access to sufficient resources in order to carry out its duties, including access to the company secretariat for advice and assistance as required.
 - (b) Be provided with appropriate and timely training, both in the form of an induction programme for new members and on an ongoing basis for all members.
 - (c) Give due consideration to all relevant laws and regulations and the Code and associated guidance.
 - (d) Ensure that a periodic evaluation of the Committee's own performance is carried out.

(e) annually review the Committee's terms of reference to ensure it is operating at maximum effectiveness and recommend any changes it considers necessary to the board for approval.

Programme of Priorities

6. On annual basis the Committee will set out a programme of priorities for the following year which will inform the agenda for its meetings.

Professional Advice

7. The Committee is authorised by the Board to obtain, at the Association's expense, external legal or other professional advice on any matters within its terms of reference, subject to prior approval by the Association Chair or the Chief Executive. (For the avoidance of doubt, an individual member of the Committee is not entitled to be reimbursed in respect of the cost of legal advice taken personally, rather than by the Committee collectively.)

Membership

- 8. Appointments to the Committee are made by the Board.
- 9. The Committee shall comprise not less than two non-executive Directors¹, including the Association Chair.
- 10. Appointments shall be made for such period as the Board shall approve.

People attending meetings of the Committee

- 11. Only members of the Committee have the right to attend meetings of the Committee. However, other individuals (including employees and external advisers) may be invited to attend meetings for all or part of any meeting, as and when the Committee Chair deems appropriate.
- 12. The Chief Executive, the Company Secretary and the Chief People Officer shall normally be invited to attend meetings of the Committee.

Notice of Meetings

- 13. Meetings of the Committee shall be called by the Company Secretary, at the request of the Committee Chair or any other member of the Committee.
- 14. Unless otherwise agreed by a majority of the Committee, notice of each meeting (including an agenda of items to be discussed) shall be given to each member of the Committee and any other person invited to attend no less than five days before the date of the meeting.

Quorum

15. The quorum necessary for the transaction of business shall be two members of the Committee.

¹ A non-executive director is a director who is not employed by the Association.

The Civil Service Motoring Association Ltd: Terms of Reference of the Nomination Committee 2023

Committee Chair

- 16. The Board shall appoint a non-executive director of the Association to be the Committee Chair, with relevant experience to be Committee Chair.
- 17. Meetings of the Committee shall normally be chaired by the Committee Chair. However:
 - (a) In the absence of the Committee Chair, the remaining members of the Committee present shall elect one of themselves to chair the meeting.
 - (b) The Association Chair shall not chair the Committee when it is discussing issues around the appointment of the Association Chair's successor.
- 17. The Committee Chair shall report to the Board at its next meeting on the nature and content of the Committee's discussions, recommendations and action to be taken.

Frequency of meetings

18. The Committee shall meet sufficiently regularly to discharge its duties effectively. It is expected that the Committee shall normally meet at least twice a year.

Video calls etc

19. As stated in the Articles, a Director may participate in a meeting of the Committee by means of a video or audio conference call or any other electronic facility which allows all persons participating in the meeting to hear one another. Such a participant shall be deemed to be present in person at the meeting and shall be entitled to vote and be counted in a quorum accordingly. The meeting shall be deemed to take place where the largest group of those participating is assembled or (if there is no such group) where the person chairing the meeting then is.

Decision-making

- 20. Questions arising at a meeting of the Committee shall be decided by a majority of votes. In the case of an equality of votes, the person chairing the meeting shall have a casting vote.
- 21. At times when the Committee comprises only two Directors, a written resolution signed by both of them (i.e. all members of the Committee) shall be valid and effectual as if it had been passed at a meeting of the Committee that has been duly convened and held. Such a resolution may consist of several documents in the like form, each signed or confirmed electronically by the relevant Directors.
- 22. As stated in the Articles, a written resolution signed or confirmed electronically by not less than three quarters of the Committee entitled to receive notice of a meeting of the Committee (subject to a minimum of **three** Directors) shall be as valid and effectual as if it had been passed at a meeting of the Committee that has been duly convened and held. Such a resolution may consist of several documents in the like form, each signed or confirmed electronically by one or more of the Directors.

Conflicts of Interest

- 23. A member of the Committee must disclose before the beginning of a meeting if he/she has a material personal interest in any matter that is going to be discussed by the Committee at the meeting.
- 24. As stated in the Articles:
 - (a) If a proposed decision of the Directors is concerned with an actual or proposed transaction or arrangement with the Association in which a Director is interested, that Director is not to be counted as participating in the decision-making process for quorum or voting purposes unless the Director's interest cannot reasonably be regarded as likely to give rise to a conflict of interest or the Director's conflict of interest arises from arrangements pursuant to which benefits are made generally available to employees and directors.
 - (b) If a question arises at a meeting of a committee of Directors as to the right of a Director to participate in the meeting (or part of the meeting) for voting or quorum purposes, the question may, before the conclusion of the meeting, be referred to the person chairing the meeting whose ruling in relation to any Director other than himself/herself is to be final and conclusive. If any question as to the right to participate in the meeting (or part of the meeting) should arise in respect of the person chairing the meeting, the question is to be decided by a decision of the Directors at that meeting, for which purpose the person chairing the meeting is not to be counted as participating in the meeting (or that part of the meeting) for voting or quorum purposes.

Administration

- 24. The Company Secretary (or their nominee) shall act as the secretary of the Committee and will ensure that the Committee receives information and papers in a timely manner to enable full and proper consideration to be given to issues.
- 25. The Company Secretary shall minute or arrange for the minuting of the proceedings of all Committee meetings, including recording the names of those present and in attendance.
- 26. Draft minutes of Committee meetings shall be circulated to all members of the Committee. Once approved, minutes shall be circulated to all other members of the Board unless exceptionally it would be inappropriate to do so (for example, when matters personal to an individual director were discussed).

Date approved by the Board:

2023

THE APPENDIX

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Committee shall:

- 1. Regularly review the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge, experience and diversity) of the Board and make recommendations to the Board with regard to any changes.
- 2. Bear in mind the need to ensure the Board has a reasonably diverse range of skills, experience and backgrounds and the Board's desire to promote diversity within the Association.
- 3. Ensure there are formal, rigorous and transparent procedures in place for the appointment of Directors.
- 4. Ensure plans are in place for orderly succession to the Board and other senior governance positions within the Association (including Governors) and oversee the development of a diverse pipeline for succession, taking into account the challenges and opportunities facing the Association, and the skills and expertise needed on the Board in the future.
- 5. Identify the capabilities required for appointments to the Board and other senior governance positions within the Association.
- 6. Keep under review the leadership needs of the organisation (both executive and non-executive) with a view to ensuring the continued ability of the organisation to compete effectively.
- 7. Make recommendations to the Board regarding:
 - (a) Appointments to the Board (executive and non-executive).
 - (b) Membership of the Board's various committees.
 - (c) Succession planning processes for Directors and Governors.
 - (d) Induction processes for new Directors.
- 8. Keep up-to-date and fully informed about strategic issues and commercial changes affecting the Group and the sector(s) in which it operates.
- 9. Be responsible for identifying and nominating for the approval of the Board, candidates to fill board vacancies as and when they arise.
- 10. Before any appointment of a Director is made by the Board (rather than, say, an appointment by the membership or Club Council), evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge, experience and diversity on the Board and, in the light of this evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities required for the particular appointment and the time commitment expected.

- 11. In identifying suitable candidates for appointment as non-executive directors by the Board², the Committee shall:
 - (a) use open advertising or the services of external advisers to facilitate the search;
 - (b) consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds; and
 - (c) consider candidates on merit and against objective criteria, having due regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board and taking care that appointees have enough time available to devote to the position.
- 12. Ensure that, on appointment to the Board, non-executive directors receive a formal letter of appointment setting out clearly what is expected of them in terms of time commitment, committee service and involvement outside board meetings.
- 13. Review the results of the Board performance evaluation process that relate to the composition of the Board and succession planning.
- 14. Review annually the time required from non-executive directors. Performance evaluation should be used to assess whether the non-executive directors are spending enough time to fulfil their duties.
- 15. Work and liaise as necessary with other Board committees, ensuring the interaction between Committees and with the Board is reviewed regularly.
- 16. Make recommendations to the Board concerning:
 - (a) Any changes needed to the succession planning process if its periodic assessment indicates the desired outcomes have not been achieved.
 - (b) Suitable candidates as new Directors and succession for existing Directors.
 - (c) Membership of the Audit & Risk and Remuneration Committees, and any other board committees as appropriate, in consultation with the chair of those committees.
 - (d) The re-appointment of non-executive directors at the conclusion of their specified term of office having given due regard to their performance and ability to continue to contribute to the Board in the light of knowledge, skills and experience required.
 - (e) Any matters relating to the continuation in office of any Director at any time (including the suspension or dismissal of an executive director as an employee of the Association).

Executive Management

17. Be responsible with the Association Chair for the recruitment process when the Association is going to appoint a new Chief Executive.

² The Board has the power to appoint up to two individuals as non-executive directors.

The Civil Service Motoring Association Ltd: Terms of Reference of the Nomination Committee 2023

18. Oversee the recruitment process (led by the Chief Executive) when the Association is going to appoint a new Chief Financial Officer.

CPD/Training

19. Keep under review the training needs of the Board and make recommendations to the Board regarding continuing professional development.

MLS and Parliament Hill³

20. Oversee the governance arrangements of Motoring & Leisure Services Ltd and Parliament Hill Ltd (including the appointment of new directors) and make recommendations to the Board.

Club Council

21. Oversee the Club Council's governance arrangements (including succession planning) and make recommendations to the Board.

Governors

- 22. Keep under review the governance arrangements in relation to the Governors and make recommendations to the Board (as the Committee sees fit).
- 23. Review recommendations from the Club Council for Governor appointments (prior to recommendation to the Board).

³ The Association's two main subsidiaries (Motoring & Leisure Services Ltd and Parliament Hill Ltd) are both FCA regulated and are governed by their own boards of directors. Since the Association is the governing body of their holding company, the Board needs to oversee the governance arrangements of the two subsidiaries.